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ARCHEOLOGICAL SITE

S™M -29
ST. MARY'S CITY 1634-1694

This 1 picturesque setting is the site of the first permanent
settlement in Maryland (1634) as well as the site of the first capital

of Maryland (1634-1694).

The entire area of the original settlement is now being developed

by the State of Maryland through the St. Mary's City Commission.

This property has been designated a National Historic Landmark by

the U.S. Department of the Interior.




SY-39

S M -28

WISEMAN'S OR CHANCELLOR'S POINT
‘S8t. Mary's City

Public

See archeological listing.

S'™M -29
ST. MARY'S CITY

See archeological listing.

A |9((-acre St. Mary's City Historic District has been
designated a National Historic Landmark by the U.S. Department
of the Interior. Included within the district boundaries
are the following properties listed on the St. Mary's County
Inventory: STMA-11, STMA-27, STMA-27A, STMA-28, STMA-29,
STMA-30, STMA-31, STMA-32, STMA-33, STMA-34, STMA-35, STMA-36,

STMA-37, STMA-38 and STMA-39.

S™ -30
STATE HOUSE OF 1676
St. Mary's City

See archeological listing.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

During the first 30 years of its existence, St. Mary's City, like
Jamestown, was a country neighborhood, with its 12 to 14 buildings,
each a country place, located within one or twc miles of the fort.

In 1667 St. Mary's City was incorporated by Lord Baltimore into a
town containing zbout one-square mile. Between 1672 and 1676 the -
first streets were laid out and by the latter year the town had

about 30 houses and a large new brick State House. From this period
until the year 1694-when the capital of the province was removed to
Annapolis- St. Mary's reached a peak of about 60 buildings.

Two factors in the early development of the Maryland colony were
responsible for the very slow growth of towns. First, the colonists'

relations with the neighboring Indians were predominately friendly, ©.:_ -

negating the need for them to band together for defense. Second, the
setting up by the Proprietary Governzent of a manorial system of large

landed estates devoted to the large scale production of tobacco served -

to decentralize some of the governmental and economic functicms usually

~..found in town. The manor lords were given the right to create courts

c:omposed of their tenants to try minor criminal cases on their plantation

and they also used their own private shipping docks for the rarketing
of their tobacco. As late as the mid-18th century a traveler to the
Southern colenies could accurately report that, "... the Capitals and

other towns in these two colonies (Maryland and Virginia), are very -z

slightly peopled, ...and remarkable for little else than the Residence
of the Governor, and the Meeting of the Three Estates, Governor,
Councii, and Assembly."l '

0f the total Town Land area of some 1,500 acres, about 700 acres are
now occupied by numerous small farms. This cultivated land is$:princi-
pPally in grain, with some tobacco and pasture land. Two hundred acres
are occupied by St. Mary's College of Maryvland, which has 7 or 8 main
buildings. About 350 acres is in woodland, mostly concentrated to the

1
L

southward toward St. Inigoes Creek. There is one subdivided residential

area of Rosecroft, as yet thinly developed. St. Mary's City today is
essentially a rural-residential area with about 100 isolated residences
located zlong the water fronts of the river and St. Inigoes Creek and
at varying intervals along the two main roads, Maryland Route 5 and the

Mattapany Street-Rosecroft Road. WNo commercial or industrial enterprises

of any character are situated within the bounds of the historic city
nor in the immediate vicinity. The town site has been little disturbed
over the years by erosion or the works of man. The flora and funa are

also still native to the earliest colonial period. The historic setting

on the west bank of the St. Mary's River, across from St. Mary's City,
1s also preserved intact; this area is still occupied by three large

1"18th Century Maryland as Portrayed in The Itinerant Observations of
of Edward Kimberz," Maryland Historical Magazine, 1956, pp. 325-326.

5y

33¢

SNOILODAYLSNI




WA

Form 10-300e UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTLRIOR 3TATE
qu,lun NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Maryland |
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES counTY
LN L
ety e INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM St. Marv's
PRI A .--C..lC FOR NPS ULE CHLY
L_L__‘.._'-,g_-__v'__,) . . ENTRY NUMBDER CATE
(Coatinuation Sheet)

b

(Number oll entslea) 7, Description second page
farms that are located on 17th century grants. - Included among these is
West St. Mary's Manor, the earliest grant of land known to have been
recorded in the Province of Marylané, May 9, 1634, and its manor house,
which dates from about 1690. .
St. Mary's Ristoric District contains the remains of approximately

60 17th-century structural and archeological sites that exbody
architectural type specimens that are eminently suited to the study of
earliest style and methods of construction.

The St. Mary's City Commission, an agency of the State of Maryland,

was established in 1266 for the preservation, development, and maintenance
of the historic district. In 1970 the Commission published’ ‘st. Mary's
City, A Plan for the Preservation and Development of Maryland's First
Capitalf The Plan and accompanying technical reports presented detailed
analyses of the historic site's resources and potential impact. The
envisioned museum encompassed 1,200 acres of shoreline, wood, and field.
The planner identified four major ccmponents: a visitor center codplex
on St. Mary's Hill, archaeological remains of the seventeenth-century
capital, two restored farzhouses ané a reconstructed seventeenth-century
farm, and maritime exhibits on the river.. To date the Commission owns
188 acres of the proposed area. . ’

Before this plan could proceed, it was necessary to establish, at least
tentatively, the location, size, and use of historic buildings and sites.
Dr. Lois Green Carr made intensive studies of.boundaries, taking into
account the rmagnetic variation from true north at the date of each property
survey. Sketch Map A provides all historic sites known by documentation
and gives the boundary for the Landmark District. This boundary includes
the addition of Pope's Freehold which lies just north of the Town-land.
Although not technically granted as Town-land, the property was included
in the town from 1668-1683, and the ancient date of the tract, patented
before 1650, makes it contemporary to the eatly development of St. Mary's
City, and part of.the landmark.

- . BOUNDARY

Beginning at the northwest corner, this boundary runs east along the
northern boundary of Popes Freehold to its intersection with Fisherman
Creek: thence south along the eastern boundaries of three freehold

tracts; St. Peter's, St. Barbara's and St. John's, to Broom Creek; thence
.continuing scuth zlong Broom Creek to St. Inlgoes Creek on the south;
thence west along Inigoes Creek to St. Mary's River; thence north along
St. Mary's River tc the point of beginning. The land tracts which form
part of the eastern boundary are shown on Sketch Map B. outlined in green.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Mary's City, founded in 1634, served as the provincial capital
of Maryland until 1695 and is probably the only remaining major
17th century town site in the United States that has never been
overbuilt or seriously intruded upon. Still largely rural, the
great natural beauty and general historic setting of this town has
survived virtually unaltered since the 17th century. Containing

" the undisturbed foundations of some 60 17th century structures,

- St. Mary's City is a major archeological site for the further study

of 17th century building techniques and architecture.

After Jzmestown and Plymouth, St. Mary's City was the third permanent
English settlement in the United States. Site of the first Catholic
chapel built in the English colcnies, St. Mary's City was also the
place vhere religious toleration was for the first time in the New
World recognized as a policy of government, and where separation of
church and state was established in principle and practice.

HISTORY

After the founding of Virginia, the British Crown established all
the other middle and southern cclonies under the propriectary system,

this system, which succeeded the Jjoint-stock company as a device to
build England's colonial empire, the King granted large areas and the
sovereign right to rule them to propietors, his favorites or those to
vhom he was indebted. The proprietors were, in essence, feudal lords,
though they were sometimes required to yield to the people certain
political privileges and powers. The_proprietors granted land to

subgrants.

Sir George Calvert was a close frient and supporter of James I. For
his services, in 1617, James rewarded him with a knighthood: in 1619,
named him secretary of ctzte: in 1620, w=ve Pim o subgeoorige

tote; T 2 zZutntoo tiul Lomoulityg

.- - - o~ -

in 1623, granted him lznég In Mo fconiionz Lnd, L 2025, numed hio
Baron of Baltimore and deeded hin a large estate in Ireland. In 1624,

which it had pPreviously used to settle Maine and New Hampshire. Under

settlers on their own terms,’ could mortgage their grants, or could make

Baltimore had announced his adherence to Roman Catholicisz and resigned
as secretary of state because of his unwillingness to take the Oath of
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Supremacy. 1In 1627, he attempted to settle the Kewfoundland grant,
which he called Avalon, but abandoned it because of the severity of
the weather. The following year, he visited Virginia, where he
found the climate favorable. .

Denied permission to live in Véﬁginia because of his religion, Lord
Baltimore returned home and appealed to the King for help. Charles
I granted him a tract of land north of Virginia, but before the
grant was consumzated Lord Baltimore died, in 1632. The grant passed
to his son Cecilius Calvert, second Lord Baltimore who named the
region of the grant "iaryland" and proceeded to establish a haven
for English Catholics. The grant conveyed almost absolute powers
to the Baltimores. They could not only own and dispose of land,
but they co:1d govern it with few restrictions. Their laws and

- . decrees, however, had to be in harmony with those of England and

~ — made with the advice and essent of the freemen or the greater part of

them or their representztives. '

The young Baltimore, in 1633, organized a colonizing expedition

and appointed his brother, Leonard Calvert, to lead it. On March 27,
1634, more than 200 settlers, in two ships, the Ark and Dove, landed
in Maryland and estzblished the town of St. Mary's in an abandoned
Indian village. Twenty men in the group were "gentlemen" and
received feudal grants from Baltimore; the remainder were laborers
and workmen. About half were Catholic, two of whom were Jesuit priests
A fort was erected at once and a large frame house for the governor
was also completed the first year. The remainder of the settlers,

for the first two or three years, lived in small cottages constructed
of wood and covered with thatch. In 1638 they completed the first
Catholic chapel in the English colonies-a structure built of brick.
From the beginning, the colony fared far better than any previous
English settlement in the New World. The location was favorable,

the Indians were friendly, and Governor Calvert made certain to profit
from the mistakes that had been made in settling Virginia. Moreover,
he could obtain emergency supplies from Virginia or New England in-
stead of making a long voyage to England. Despite the colony's
prosperity, its_growth was slow because, strangely enough, few
English Catholics cared to migrate; and because Baltimore insisted

on an obsolescent plan of land tenure, which involived the renewal of
long-outmoded feudzl concepts. Under this plan, in the first years
some 60 manors of 1,000 acres or more were established. Yeomen
farmers, however formed the backbone of the venture.

grant and in the spirt of religious freedom, in 1649 Baltimore-with
the approval of his assembly-oificially proclaimed the religious
toleration that he had practiced from the beginning. The Maryland

Toleraticn Act preomised frecico of -

e e

To encourane the micratlen of Proto-innt warlkin~—on te ropulate his

ané _asaunniy $0_ a1l wio
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would profess belief in the Holy Trinity.

Many Puritans had immnigrated into Maryland in 1648, including a
substantial group from Virginia. Within a short time, the -
Puritans wielded more pover than the Catholics. In 1654, they
galned control of the assexbly; deposed Baltimore's governor,
William Stone, himself a Puritan; and amended the Toleration

Act to exclude all but Puritans. Meanwvhile, Lord Baltimore had
been deprived by the Puritan Parlizment of his rights to govern
the colony. He zppealed to Oliver Cromwell, who ultimately sided
with him against the Puritan rebels in Maryland. 1In 1657, his
rights were restored and the bigotry of the amended Toleration
Act corrected.

- In July 1689 events took place at St. Mary's City that were to help
bring about the end of its reign as the capital. News of the Glorious
Revolution in England and James II's flight to France had reached the
Chesapezake early in the vear and in April the Virginia government had
proclaimed William and Mary as king and queen. Lord Baltimore, who had
returned to England in 1684, sent a messenger to his colony with orders
to proclaim the new sovereigns, but the messenger had died before
sailing and the orders had not arrived. The failure to proclaim
William and Mary produced great uneasiness in Maryland and triggered
anti-Catholic fears in the predominantly Protestant population. By
1689 the council was almost entirely Catholic and in Lord Baltimore's
absence it lacked strong leadership. These circumstances provided a
small group of agitators and ambitious men with the opportunity to
overturn the proprietary government, dismiss Catholics from office,
and petition William and Mary for crown rule. o

This was granted in 1691 and the third Lord Baltimore lost his govern-—

mental privileges, and Maryland became a-royal colony. His conversion

to the Anglican faith in 1713, however, prompted the return of the
proprietorship. two years later, the Baltimores retzining control until
the War for Independence. But intolerance of Catholiecism, which had
bezun after 1691, continued to plaque Maryland and was probably an
important factor in the decision to move Maryland's capital from St.

Mary's City to Annapolis-then called Anne Arundel Town. In 1694 the

Royal Governor, Sir Francis Nicholson, succeeded in getting the approval

of the Puritan dominated Provincial Assembly for his proposal to

relocate the capital: St. Mary's City was then considered to be the
traditional stronghold of the Catholic Proprietary Government and also

4 monument to the old Catholic regime. A few vears after the removal

of tihe szat of coionial government, »t. lary's Litv also lost its !

status as a county seat, and the comzunity then declined rapidly. By
the year 1787, all that remained of the former capital was the brick

State House, which had been erected in 1676 and was then being used as
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a church, and seven widely scattered houses. In 1829 the old State
. . Bouse was demolished and by 1934 only two of the 17th century structures
were still extant. In 1934, Maryland observed the 300th anniversary
of its foundirng. As a part of that commemcration the existing .
replica of the 1676 Stzte House was carefully reconstructed. In 1965
the State estzblished a temporary comnmission to study the desirzbility
and feasibility of restoring St. Mary's City. As a result of their
report, in 1966, a permenent commission, the St. Mary's Commission,
was created to preserve develop,and maintain historic St. Mary's
City.
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—_ CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE
MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
INTERNAL NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM

Property Name: _Bridge #18009 Survey N

Marv's County

Property Address:_MDS over Fisherman’s Creek, St

Project: _MDS over Fisherman’s Creek, St. Mary’s County Agency: SHA
Site visit by MHT Staff: _X no yes Name Date
District Name: St. Mary’s City NHL Survey Number: Q\i57‘l‘-23*3
7
X Listed Eligible Comment
Criteria: A B XC D Considerations: A B c D £ F G None
The resource contributes/ X does not contribute to the historic significance of this
historic district in:
Location X Design Setting Materials
X Workmanship X Feeling X Association
“ustification for decision: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map)
According to information prepared by SHA, Bridge #18009, a 22’ Jlong steel beam
structure constructed in 1936, has no particular design significance. Although it is located
in the St. Mary’s City Historic District, it does not contribute to the district’s
significance as the 17th century provincial capital of Maryland nor does it seem likely to
contribute to any possible later periods of significance.

Documentation on the property is presented in project files

Preparedby: RitaSuffness

Elizabeth Hannold 2/18/92
Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date
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Survey No.

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA - HISTORIC CONTEXT

[
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Geographic Region:
Eastern Shore (all Eastern Shore counties, and Cecil)
Western Shore (Anne Arundel, Calvert, Charles,
Prince George’s and St. Mary’s)
Piedmont (Baltimore City, Baltimore, Carroll,
Frederick, Harford, Howard, Montgomery)
Western Maryland {Allegany, Garrett and Washington)
Chronolagical/Developmental Periods:
Paleo-Indian 10000-7500 B.C.
Early Archaic 7500-6000 B.C.
Middle Archaic 6000-4000 B.C.
Late Archaic 4000-2000 B.C.
Early Woodland 2000-500 BR.C.
Middle Woodland 500 B.C. - A.D. 900
Late. Woodland/Archaic A.D. 900-1600
Contact and Settlement A.D. 1570-1750
Rural Agrarian Intensification A.D. 1680-1815
Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial/Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930
Modern Period A.D. 1930-Present
Unknown Period ( prehistoric historic)
Prehistoric Period Themes: IV. Historic Period Themes:
Subsistence Agriculture
Settlement X Architecture, Landscape Architecture,
and Community Planning
Political Economic {Commercial and Industrial)
Demographic Government/Law
Religion Military
Technology Religion
Environmental Adaption Social/Educational/Cultural
Transportation
esource Type:
Category: structure
Historic Environment: _rural
Historic Function(s) and Use(s): _transportation
Known Design Source: _Unknown
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST NR Eligible: yes___

. NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM no X

Property Name: __Cobb House (St Mary'sCollege) ~ Inventory Number: SM-29

Address: 18952 East Fisher Road City: St. Mary's City Zip Code:_20686-3001

County: -Saint Marys USGS Topographic Map:  _St. Mary's City

Owner: State of Maryland

Tax Parcel #: 111 Tax parcel Map Number: 63 Tax Account ID Number: 1901035843

Project: Demolition of Cobb House - Construct new Bldg Agency: SMCM

Site visit by staff = no _X yes Name: C. Andrew Lewi Date: 05/07/2001

Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended _X

Criteria: A B C D Considerations: _ A __ B C D E F G None

Is the property located within a historic district? no X yes Name of District:  St. Mary's City

Is district listed? no X yes District Inventory Number: SM-29

~Nocumentation on the property/district is presented in:
MHT Library

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo)

This side gable house on the campus of St. Mary's College was constructed in 1948. It has wooden siding, numerous
additions and a front porch that could be considered "Federal" in style. The house is not associated in any significant
way with the history of St. Mary's City or St. Mary's College and, therefore, does not appear to meet any of the criteria
for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.

Prepared by: C. Andrew Lewis Date Prepared: 08/03/2001

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST REVIEW

Eligibility recommended Eligibility not recommended _X
Criteria A B C D Considerations A B C D E F G None
MHT Comments:

This building is proposed for demolition - a_new building is to be constructed on its site.

- C. Andrew Lewis August 03, 2001
Reviewe%Office of Preservation Services D7(e \X
A x(7/s, D{
Re"iewer, NR Prog%:m Dlate

200 | 0262
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Cobb House
Non-Contributing to the St. Mary’s City Historic District (SM-29)
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Bul.. 4 Key Parking Lots: g
Admissions Office LotA Schaefer / o i
Financial Aid LotB Townhouse Ty \ J AT L
Townhouse Green & Student Residences LotC Guam T XN TONIPARK z Wl
3a: Eleanor Diggs Harrington House LotD Side of Somerset S 4 ,' ¢
3b: Geneva Boone House LotE Front of Somerset l’ (=" v -
3c: Homer L. Dodge House LotF Campus Center 1 ~
3d: Margaret Wing Dodge House LotG Rear of Library R P} 7
3e: Aurine B. Morsell House LotH Farthings - HSMC (front row only) e “ 1 L
3f: Bernard C. Trueschler House Lot]  South Side of Anne Arundel ST. MARY'S RIVER - It ‘o L
Daugherty-Palmer Commons LotJ North Side of Anne Arundel L [ ('}
Townhouse Crescent Lot K Trinity Church ¢ L I !
Schaefer Hall (Science and Math) LotL Front of Caroline & ' ¥ - ?
Somerset Gymnasium LotM Side of PG and Caroline and Back of PG
Maintenance Buildings Lot O Margaret Brent
Caroline Residence Hall LotP QueenAnn C O G 3
Prince George's Residence Hall LotQ White House
Dorchester Residence Hall LotR Kent H O\A S 6
Montgomery Fine Arts Center Lot S Lot Across from St. John's Site
Ethel Chance Hall Lot T Lot Behind Admissions
St. John's Archaeological Site (HSMC) and Financial Aid
Cobb House

Queen Anne Residence Hall

Public Safety Office/Visitor's Center

Library

Campus Center /
Anne Arundel Hall (Human Development)
Margaret Brent Hall (Business Affairs)
Turner Sailing Center
Alumni Lodge

Garden of Remembrance

Kent Hall (Social Sciences)
Calvert Hall (Administration
and Residence Hall)
St Mary’s Hall
(Auerbach Auditorium)
White House (Administration)
Student Pavilion (Recreation)
Athletic Stadium

The following are
sites belonging to
Historlc St. Mary’s City

Reconstructed State House
Farthing’s Ordinary
Dove Pier

The following are sites
belonging to Trinity Church

Trinity Church

Trinity Church Rectory
Trinity Church Parish Hall
St. Mary’s City Post Office

at Historic St.Marys City
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